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Agenda Item 5c (Consent/Action) 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: October 2, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Time Extension Request: Silverado Trail No. 2 Annexation to the 

Napa Sanitation District 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve a time extension for the completion of terms and conditions for the Silverado Trail 
No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District for three years effective October 2, 2017 
extending to October 2, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
On October 3, 2016 the Commission approved a proposal for the annexation of 
approximately 1.0 acres of unincorporated territory to the Napa Sanitation District (NSD). 
The affected territory comprises one entire parcel along with the adjacent public right-of-way 
portion of Silverado Trail. The subject parcel is located at 1944 Silverado Trail immediately 
north of the City of Napa’s jurisdictional boundary and sphere of influence. The annexation 
is intended to allow the landowner to remove the private onsite septic system and connect the 
existing single-family residence and detached second unit to NSD’s public sewer system. 
 
California Government Code Section 57001 requires a Certificate of Completion be filed 
within one year of annexation approval by LAFCO. This statute permits LAFCO to authorize 
an extension of time it deems reasonable for the completion of necessary terms and 
conditions. The landowners of 1944 Silverado Trail have submitted a letter (Attachment One) 
requesting a three-year time extension in order to complete the terms and conditions adopted 
by the Commission in approving the annexation. The letter states there have been unforeseen 
setbacks involving the coordination of projects with the various agencies involved as well as 
challenges receiving bids from contractors for the lateral sewer connection and manhole 
rehabilitation. The requested time extension appears reasonable given the landowners are 
committed to the permitting process and public sewer service is needed for the subject parcel. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Time Extension Request Letter from Landowner (August 15, 2017) 
2) Resolution No. 2016-11 
 

 



August 15, 2017 

Brendon Freeman 

Executive Officer 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 

1030 Seminary Street, Ste B 

Napa CA 94559 

Re: Silverado Trail No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 

Dear Mr. Freeman, 

We are writing to request for a time extension to complete the terms and conditions required for 

annexation, with a set deadline of October 2, 2017. We are asking for an extension period of up 

to three (3) years, if possible. Our request for the extension is based on the following reasons: 

 Coordination between the different agencies involved – Napa Sanitation District (NSD),

Cal Trans (CT) governing that portion of Silverado Trail, Contractors, has proved to be

challenging because of respective schedules

 Contractors identified for the lateral sewer connection and manhole rehabilitation (as

required by NSD) are very busy and swamped. We started request for bids in June 2017,

and to date, I have only received two bids – which seemed to be higher bids than

anticipated because of premium rates. Some of the companies we have called have stated

that they are even too busy to do bids and their work schedules are so full that they are

tied up for years.

 Review and approval of Cal Trans Encroachment Permit can take up to two (2) months.

We, along with the engineering firm we engaged, Chaudhary & Associates, are doing

everything we can to expedite the process; however, there is a sixty (60) calendar day

period to grant or deny a permit from the time of submittal – expected in beginning of

September 2017. NSD just finished reviewing the plans for sewer connection and verbal

approval was given 8/11/2017 which was required before plans for CT can be prepared.

We have been working on this project continuously since approval of the proposed annexation 

on the LAFCO October 3, 2016 meeting. Unfortunately, with all the terms and conditions 

required and the processes involved to meet them plus all the coordination involved between the 

different agencies, it has been difficult meeting the October 2, 2017 deadline. 

We very much appreciate your consideration in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

James & Ina Fitzgibbon 

1944 Silverado Trail Napa CA 94558 
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